Registration of a Charge

Company name: FREEDOG LTD

Company number: 09319623

Received for Electronic Filing: 28/09/2017



Details of Charge

Date of creation: 28/09/2017

Charge code: 0931 9623 0002

Persons entitled: ASSET ADVANTAGE LIMITED

Brief description:

Contains fixed charge(s).

Contains negative pledge.

Authentication of Form

This form was authorised by: a person with an interest in the registration of the charge.

Authentication of Instrument

Certification statement: WE CERTIFY THAT THE ELECTRONIC COPY INSTRUMENT

DELIVERED AS PART OF THIS APPLICATION FOR REGISTRATION

IS A CORRECT COPY OF THE ORIGINAL INSTRUMENT.

Certified by: ASSET ADVANTAGE LIMITED



CERTIFICATE OF THE REGISTRATION OF A CHARGE

Company number: 9319623

Charge code: 0931 9623 0002

The Registrar of Companies for England and Wales hereby certifies that a charge dated 28th September 2017 and created by FREEDOG LTD was delivered pursuant to Chapter A1 Part 25 of the Companies Act 2006 on 28th September 2017.

Given at Companies House, Cardiff on 2nd October 2017

The above information was communicated by electronic means and authenticated by the Registrar of Companies under section 1115 of the Companies Act 2006





CHATTEL MORTGAGE

between

FREEDOG LTD

and

ASSET ADVANTAGE LIMITED

28th September2017

AA00005883

CONTENTS

Clause		Page
,		
1	Interpretation	3
2	Undertaking to Pay Secured Liabilities	4
3	Mortgage Provisions	4
4	Restrictions	4
5	Enforcement	5
6	Covenants and Insurance	5
7	Receiver	5
8	Asset Advantage's Right to Perform Mortgagor's Obligations	6
9	Information Disclosure	6
10	Preservation of Rights	6
11	Rights Under this Mortgage	6
12	Continuing Security	7
13	Notice of Subsequent Encumbrance	7
14	Suspense Accounts	7
15	Discharge and Avoidance of Payments	7
16	Remedies, Waivers and Consents	7
17	Partial Invalidity	8
18	Power of Attorney	8
19	Costs and Expenses	8
20	Rights to Assign	8
21	Communications	8
22	Counterparts	9
23	Governing Law and Submission to Jurisdiction	9
SCHEDI	HE	

SCHEDULE

The Goods

This CHATTEL MORTGAGE is dated

28th September 2017

and is made between

(1) FREEDOG LTD incorporated in England and Wales (company number 09319623) and having its registered office at 37 Gay Street, Bath, BA1 2NT (the "Mortgagor")

and

(2) ASSET ADVANTAGE LIMITED incorporated in England (company number 04202944) of 3rd Floor, Matrix House, Basing View, Basingstoke, Hampshire RG21 4DZ ("Asset Advantage").

WHEREAS

Asset Advantage has entered into the Finance Agreement with the Mortgagor and in consideration of the facilities being provided thereunder, the Mortgagor has agreed to grant this Deed to grant security over the Goods to Asset Advantage.

NOW THIS DEED WITNESSES AS FOLLOWS:-

1 Interpretation

In this Mortgage:

1.1 the following words and expressions shall bear the following meanings:-

"Asset Advantage Group" means Asset Advantage, any subsidiary of it, any holding company of it and any subsidiary of its holding company;

"Business Day" means any day (excluding Saturdays, Sundays and bank holidays) on which banks are generally open in the City of London for the transaction of normal banking business;

"Encumbrance" means any mortgage, standard security, charge (whether fixed or floating), assignment, assignation, pledge, encumbrance, hypothecation, security interest, title retention or other preferential right having the effect of creating security;

"Finance Agreement" means the loan agreement between Asset Advantage and the Mortgagor dated 27 SFP 204s the same may be amended, novated or varied from time to time;

"Goods" means (i) the goods more particularly described in the Schedule hereto together with all parts, accessories, additions or replacements in relation thereto from time to time, (ii) the benefit of all existing and future manufacturer's or supplier's servicing and maintenance contracts, warranties and guarantees, whether contractual or otherwise and (iii) all of the Mortgagor's right, title, benefit and interest in and to all contracts of insurance taken out by the Mortgagor or in respect of the Goods and all monies paid or payable under which contracts from time to time as the same may be amended, varied, supplemented or replaced from time to time;

"Receiver" means an administrative receiver, receiver and manager or other receiver appointed pursuant to this Mortgage in respect of the Mortgagor or over all or any of the Goods;

"Secured Liabilities" means all sums due and to become due by the Mortgagor under the Finance Agreement and all other present and future liabilities (including without limitation all sums of principal, interest and expenses) whether actual or contingent and whether owned solely or jointly or whether as principal debtor, guarantor, cautioner, surety, indemnifier or otherwise (or the equivalent in any other relevant jurisdiction) or the Mortgagor to Asset Advantage; and in whatever manner and on any account;

"subsidiary" and "holding company" shall have the meanings given to them in Section 1159 of the Companies Act 2006 and "subsidiaries" shall mean all or any of them, as appropriate;

- 1.2 without prejudice to any requirement to procure consent to the same the expressions "Mortgagor" and "Asset Advantage" include their successors, assignees and transferees:
- 1.3 without prejudice to any requirement to procure consent to the same, any reference to any document of any kind is to that document as amended, varied, supplemented, novated, restated or substituted from time to time; and
- 1.4 a person who is not a party to this Mortgage has no right under the Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999 to enforce or to enjoy the benefit of any term of this Mortgage.

2 Undertaking to Pay Secured Liabilities

The Mortgagor:

- 2.1 undertakes to pay and discharge the Secured Liabilities to Asset Advantage or as Asset Advantage may direct:
 - 2.1.1 on the due date for payment or performance of the Secured Liabilities concerned as provided by the terms of the Finance Agreement or any other agreement or document constituting the same; and
 - 2.1.2 in the absence of any express provision for payment and performance of the Secured Liabilities concerned on written demand by Asset Advantage;
- agrees that if it shall fail to pay any part of the Secured Liabilities when due then such amount shall bear interest (after as well as before judgement and payable on demand) at the rate of 1% per month from the due date until paid in full;
- 2.3 agrees with Asset Advantage that a certificate signed by or on behalf of Asset Advantage as to the amount, calculation or nature of the Secured Liabilities or any part of them will, in the absence of manifest error, be conclusive and binding on the Mortgagor.

3 Mortgage Provisions

As a continuing security for discharge of the Secured Liabilities the Mortgagor as owner with full title guarantee charges to Asset Advantage by way of legal mortgage the Goods.

4 Restrictions

The Mortgagor undertakes to Asset Advantage that it will not (without the prior written consent of Asset Advantage):

- 4.1 create or allow to subsist any Encumbrance over the Goods; or
- 4.2 sell, deal with, lease, licence or dispose of all or any of the Goods.

5 Enforcement

At any time after Asset Advantage has demanded payment of the Secured Liabilities or if the Mortgagor defaults in the performance of any of its obligations under this Mortgage Asset Advantage may without further notice immediately exercise all rights, powers and remedies available to it by law including (without limitation):

- 5.1 to take possession of the Goods and for that purpose to enter upon any land or buildings where the Goods are or are reasonably thought to be situated without being liable to the Mortgagor for or by reason of such entry;
- 5.2 to appoint a person from time to time to act as receiver of the Goods;
- 5.3 discharge, release or compromise claims in respect of the Goods which have given or may give rise to any lien or encumbrance on the Goods in priority to this Mortgage or which are or may be enforceable by proceedings against the Goods;
- to sell the Goods by public or private contract at any place in the world with or without advertisement or notice to the Mortgagor and upon such terms as Asset Advantage in its absolute discretion may determine and so that Asset Advantage has the power in its discretion to postpone any such sale or to proceed to a forced sale without being liable for any loss resulting from such postponement or forced sale; and
- 5.5 pending sale of the Goods to manage, insure, maintain and repair the Goods and to employ or lay up the Goods in such manner and for such period as it may think fit and to do all acts incidental thereto as if it was the owner of the Goods and to recover any losses incurred as a consequence of taking any such action as aforesaid.

6 Covenants and Insurance

- 6.1 The Mortgagor will not without the prior written consent of Asset Advantage change the location of the Goods, allow any variation or release of any warranty or guarantee relating to the Goods, or carry out any works to the Goods which would affix it to the land on which it stands in a way which would make it form part of that land.
- The Mortgagor will from time to time deposit with Asset Advantage all documents of title, invoices, contracts, warranties, insurance policies and guarantees relating to the Goods.
- 6.3 The Mortgagor will keep the Goods in good condition and comprehensively insured to Asset Advantage's reasonable satisfaction for its full reinstatement cost and in default Asset Advantage (without becoming liable to account as mortgagee in possession) may enter any premises where the Goods are located and repair or insure the Goods.
- The Mortgagor will hold in trust for Asset Advantage all money received under any insurance of the Goods and at Asset Advantage's option will apply the same in making good the relevant loss or damage or in or towards discharge of the Secured Liabilities.
- The Mortgagor will if Asset Advantage request affix and at all times maintain and display prominently on the Goods a notice in a form satisfactory to Asset Advantage and will on request supply evidence of that to Asset Advantage.

7 Receiver

7.1 Any Receiver appointed by Asset Advantage will have full power to sell, lease, licence, charge, deal with, dispose of and manage the Goods and do anything which he considers conducive or incidental to managing and realising the Goods or the

income from the Goods and he may borrow any money he requires for those purposes.

- 7.2 Joint Receivers may exercise powers jointly or severally.
- 7.3 A Receiver shall apply all money he receives first in repayment of all money borrowed by him and his expenses and liabilities and in payment of his fees and secondly towards the remaining matters specified in Section 109(8) of the Law of Property Act 1925.

8 Asset Advantage's Right to Perform Mortgagor's Obligations

- 8.1 If the Mortgagor fails to perform any obligations imposed upon it by this Mortgage Asset Advantage may but is not obliged to take such steps as in its opinion may be required to remedy such failure including making any payment.
- 8.2 The Mortgagor shall indemnify Asset Advantage from and against any sums expended by Asset Advantage pursuant to Clause 8.1.
- 8.3 All amounts payable under Clause 8.2 shall bear interest at the rate of 1% per month from the date the same are incurred, computed and compounded monthly.

9 Information Disclosure

The Mortgagor authorises Asset Advantage to disclose information about the Mortgagor, this Mortgage, the Goods and the Secured Liabilities to:

- 9.1 any party to whom Asset Advantage has assigned or transferred or intends to assign or transfer its rights under this Mortgage;
- 9.2 any other person if required by law to do so;
- 9.3 any member of Asset Advantage Group; or
- 9.4 Asset Advantage's auditors, advisors, applicable regulatory authorities and investors.

10 Preservation of Rights

This Mortgage, the security constituted by this Mortgage and the rights, powers, remedies and discretions conferred by this Mortgage shall not be discharged, impaired or otherwise affected by:

- 10.1 any legal limitation, disability, incapacity or other similar circumstance relating to the Mortgagor; or
- any act or omission or other circumstances which but for this provision might operate to release the Mortgagor from its obligations in respect of the Secured Liabilities, in whole or in part.

11 Rights Under this Mortgage

This Mortgage, the security constituted by this Mortgage and the rights, powers, remedies and discretions conferred by this Mortgage:

shall be in addition to and independent of and shall not in any way prejudice or be prejudiced:

- by any collateral or other security, right, remedy or power whether at law or otherwise which Asset Advantage may now or at any time after the date of this Mortgage have or hold for all or any part of the Secured Liabilities;
- (b) by any such collateral or other security, right, remedy or power becoming wholly or in part void or voidable or unenforceable; or
- (c) by the failure to perfect or enforce any such collateral or other security, right, remedy or power; and
- may be enforced or exercised without Asset Advantage first having taken action or obtained judgement against the Mortgagor, filed any claim to rank in the winding up or liquidation of the Mortgagor or having enforced or sought to enforce any other collateral, security, right, remedy or power whether at law or otherwise.

12 Continuing Security

The security constituted by this Mortgage shall be a continuing security and shall remain in full force and effect until total and irrevocable satisfaction of all the Secured Liabilities.

13 Notice of Subsequent Encumbrance

If Asset Advantage receives or is deemed to have received notice of any subsequent Encumbrance or other interest affecting any part of the Goods and/or proceeds of sale or realisation of the Goods Asset Advantage may open a new account or accounts for the Mortgagor in its books and if Asset Advantage does not do so then, unless Asset Advantage gives express written notice to the contrary to the Mortgagor as from the time of receipt or deemed receipt of such notice by Asset Advantage all payments made by the Mortgagor to Asset Advantage shall notwithstanding any appropriation by the Mortgagor to the contrary be treated as having been credited to a new account of the Mortgagor and not as having been applied in reduction of the Secured Liabilities.

14 Suspense Accounts

All monies received by Asset Advantage under this Mortgage may at the discretion of Asset Advantage be credited to a suspense account and may be held in such account for so long as Asset Advantage shall think fit without any obligation to apply all or any part of such monies in or towards payment or performance of the Secured Liabilities.

15 Discharge and Avoidance of Payments

Any settlement or discharge between the Mortgagor and Asset Advantage shall be conditional upon no security or payment granted or made to Asset Advantage by the Mortgagor or any other person being avoided or reduced by virtue of any provision or enactment relating to administration, bankruptcy, insolvency or liquidation for the time being in force and accordingly (but without prejudice to any other rights of Asset Advantage) Asset Advantage shall be entitled to recover from the Mortgagor the value or amount of such security or payment from the Mortgagor or to enforce this Mortgage to the full extent of the Secured Liabilities as if such settlement or discharge had not occurred.

16 Remedies, Waivers and Consents

- 16.1 No failure or delay by Asset Advantage in exercising any right, remedy or power under this Mortgage shall operate as a waiver and no single or partial exercise shall prevent further exercise of any right, remedy or power.
- Any waiver and any consent by Asset Advantage under this Mortgage must be in writing to be effective and may be given subject to such conditions as Asset Advantage thinks fit.

17 Partial Invalidity

- 17.1 Each provision of this Mortgage will be valid and enforceable to the fullest extent permitted by law.
- 17.2 If any provision of this Mortgage shall to any extent be invalid or unenforceable the validity and enforceability of the remaining provisions of this Mortgage will not in any way be affected. Any invalid or unenforceable provision shall be modified to the extent necessary to make such provision valid and enforceable provided Asset Advantage consents in writing to such modification.

18 Power of Attorney

- 18.1 The Mortgagor irrevocably appoints Asset Advantage and also as a separate appointment any Receiver severally its attorney and attorneys with full power to delegate for the Mortgagor and on its behalf, in its name and as its act and deed or otherwise to execute and deliver any document or any alteration, addition or deletion to any document which such attorney requires or deems proper in relation to this Mortgage or any perfection, protection or enforcement action in connection therewith.
- The Mortgagor hereby ratifies and confirms and agrees to ratify and confirm immediately upon request by Asset Advantage or the Receiver the actions of the attorney appointed under Clause 18.1.

19 Costs and Expenses

- The Mortgagor shall pay, on a full indemnity basis, all costs, charges, expenses and liabilities incurred by Asset Advantage or to be incurred by Asset Advantage or any attorney, manager, agent or other person appointed by Asset Advantage in connection with the preparation, negotiation, execution, registration, perfection, modification, amendment, enforcement and or attempted enforcement, exercise or purported exercise of rights under, assignation, release or discharge of this Mortgage or actions, proceedings or claims in respect of this Mortgage or the Goods which costs, charges and expenses shall form part of the Secured Liabilities.
- All amounts payable under Clause 19.1 shall bear interest at the rat eof 1% per month from the date the same are incurred, computed and compounded monthly.

20 Rights to Assign

- 20.1 Asset Advantage may assign all or any of its rights under this Mortgage.
- 20.2 The Mortgagor may not assign any of its rights or transfer any of its rights or obligations under this Mortgage without the prior written consent of Asset Advantage.

21 Communications

Each notice, consent and other communication in respect of this Mortgage:

- 21.1 will be in writing (which includes by fax);
- 21.2 will be sent to the address or fax number most recently designated for this purpose by the recipient;
- 21.3 given to the Mortgagor will be effective when left at, or two Business Days after it is posted to, the relevant address or, in the case of a fax, on receipt by Asset Advantage of a fax confirmation sheet; and

21.4 given to Asset Advantage will be effective only on actual receipt by the Business Lending Services Department of Asset Advantage or such other department as may be notified to the Mortgagor from time to time.

22 Counterparts

This Mortgage may be executed in any number of counterparts, and this has the same effect as if the signatures on the counterparts were on a single copy of this Mortgage.

23 Governing Law and Submission to Jurisdiction

- 23.1 The governing law of this Mortgage is the law of England.
- 23.2 The Mortgagor irrevocably:
 - 23.2.1 submits to the jurisdiction of the Courts of England; and
 - 23.2.2 agrees that nothing in Clause 23.2.1 prevents Asset Advantage or Receiver taking proceedings in any other jurisdiction nor shall the taking of proceedings in any jurisdiction preclude Asset Advantage or Receiver taking proceedings in any other jurisdiction.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF this Mortgage has been duly executed and delivered as a Deed on the date first above written.

SCHEDULE

THE GOODS

Manufacturer	Description / Identification Number	Location
Realize Concept Interior	Works carried out for:	30 Techno Trading Estate
Ltd	2 x SHELVES 450w x450dx1800h	Bramble Road, Swindon,
	DBL FREEZER 1390wx850dx1985h	SN2 8HB
	DOUGH ROLLER 530wx550dx650h	
	FRIDGE 2230wx 7000dx860h	
	PREP FRIDGE 1800wx700dx860h	
	2 x OPEN SHELVES 1800wx 700dx860h	
	PIZZA OVEN	
	4 DOOR FREEZER 2225wx700dx860h	
	HEATED PASS 1130wx538dx62h	
	SHELVES 1000wx450dx1800h	
	SHELVES 1500wx450dx1800h	
	12 x SUSPENDED LED VINTAGE LAMPS	
	1 x FLUORESCENT LIGHT	
	1 x 3 PHASE FOR PIZZA OVEN	
	8 x PAIR 13a SOCKET/SPUR WHITE BELOW	
	COUNTER	
	5 x PAIR 13a SOCKET/SPUR WHITE HIGH LEVEL	
	2 x PAIR 13a STAINLESS STEEL ABOVE COUNTER	
	2 x RJ45 DATA POINTS INTERNALLY WIRED TO	
	CLIENT SUPPLIED HUB	
	1 x HEAT DETECTOR	
	1 x EMERGENCY LIGHT	
	1 x LIGHT SWITCH	
	WORKTOP WITH SPACE UNDER FOR DRINKS	
	FRIDGES	
	INNER FACE LINED UP TO 1200MM WITH PLY TO	
	CONCEAL CLIMBING WALL FIXINGS AND CABLES	
	ALLOW FO VERTICAL BOARD TO MOUNT SCREENS	
	9 x 125mm dia NON DIMMABLE LED VINTAGE	
	LAMP BY SEGULA OR SIMILAR ON FESTOON CABLE	
	BLACK LAMP HOLDERS	
	6 x LED STRIP LIGHTING	
	3 x TWIN CORE AUDIO SYSTEM LINKED BACK TO	
	SERVER WIRED TO LOCAL SPEAKERS	
	2 x SONOS POWERED SPEAKERS SUPPLIED BY	
	CLIENT ALL FOR POWER AND DATA LINKED BACK	
	TO SERVER	
	4 x 2x13a WHITE AT HIGH LEVEL	
	12 x 2x13a WHITE 450 FROM FFL	
	2 x 13a SPUR AT HIGH LEVEL	

	2 x 13a SPUR AT 450MM FROM FLOOR	
	1 x LIGHT SWITCH KEY OPERATED	
	5 x RJ45 DATA POINTS LINKED BACK TO SERVER	
	12 x RJ45 VOICE AND DATA POINTS LINKED TO	
	LOCAL HUB	
	2 x SMOKE DETECTOR	
	1 x PIR LINKED TO LIGHTING AND EXTRACT	
	1 x EMERGENCY LIGHT FITTING	
	2 x RADIATOR ON ELECTRICAL SPUR INCLUDE	
	THERMOSTAT/TIMER	
	1 x EXTRACTOR FAN LINKED TO LIGHTING	
Realize Concept Interior	To manufacture and installation of new safety railing	30 Techno Trading Estate
Ltd	parkout	Bramble Road, Swindon,
	-	SN2 8HB
Realize Concept Interior	To remove trampoline infilling floor with structural	30 Techno Trading Estate
Ltd	joints over boarding and safety matting whole area	Bramble Road, Swindon,
		SN2 8HB
Realize Concept Interior	To supply safety walling at high level around trampoline	30 Techno Trading Estate
Ltd	to manufacture and installation of parkour boxes to add	Bramble Road, Swindon,
	to existing smaller sections 6no boxes large, 4no small	SN2 8HB
Realize Concept Interior	Storage door and shelving under exiting DJ booth	30 Techno Trading Estate
Ltd		Bramble Road, Swindon,
		SN2 8HB
CentraHeat Heating &	Fit double check valve to incoming mains Fit double check valves x2 to staff changing	30 Techno Trading Estate
Plumbing Ltd	Fit double check valves x2 to staff changing room showers.	Bramble Road, Swindon, SN2 8HB
	3. Cut out x2 dead legs in gents staff changing	SINZ OFF
	rooms.	
	4. Cut out x 2 dead legs in café serving area	
	5. Cut out dead leg above café unit.	
	6. Cut out dead leg above cash unit	
	7. Fit double check valve on supply to slushie	
	machines.	
	8. Fit double check valve supplying Brita Purity	
	and coffee machine.	
	9. Repiped water heater PRV with tundish and	
	self-closing waste to meet air gap requirement.	
	10. Fit outside tap with double check valve	20 T L T L F L.
Swindon Engineering	Supply Module Blocks:	30 Techno Trading Estate
Metalworkers Ltd.	1. 0.60m x 0.60 x 2.00m, 0.70m x 0.60 x 2.00m, 0.80m x 0.60 x 2.00m	Bramble Road, Swindon, SN2 8HB
	2. 0.80m x 0.60m x 2.80m, 0.60m x 0.60m x 2.20m	SINZ OND
	3. 2.50m x 1.50m x 1.50m, 0.40m x 1.00m x 1.50m,	
	0.20m x 0.20m x 1.50m	
	4. 2.20m x 1.50m x 1.50m, 2.42m x 1.50m x 1.00m	
Swindon Engineering	To carry out emergency removal of the existing	30 Techno Trading Estate
Swindon Engineering Metalworkers Ltd.	damaged doors and replace temporarily until the new	Bramble Road, Swindon,
mount of the later	replacement doors are manufactured and installed:	SN2 8HB
	Remove the fork lift damaged doors and frame	
	from its opening	

	 Transport the damaged doors to SEM Limited Factory Cut out badly damaged sections, straighten doors and weld in new sections Repair damaged brickwork in door opening as a result of fork truck impact. Return the shop front doors to Freedog 	
Swindon Engineering Metalworkers Ltd.	Weld stacked containers together	30 Techno Trading Estate Bramble Road, Swindon, SN2 8HB
Safe Fence Ltd	16 x Plastic Crowd Barrier	30 Techno Trading Estate Bramble Road, Swindon, SN2 8HB
Continental Sports Limited 6 x Trampoline Park Springs – bag of 50		30 Techno Trading Estate Bramble Road, Swindon, SN2 8HB
Airspace Solutions.com Ltd 210 x Spare Springs		30 Techno Trading Estate Bramble Road, Swindon, SN2 8HB

This is an important document. You acknowledge you have been given sufficient opportunity to take professional advice with respect to the actual and potential liability you shall incur by signing this Mortgage.

SIGNED as a Deed by Freedog Ltd		
acting by:		
ACEXANDER PD WITHEY	Director	Al little
(Print Full Name)		(Signature) Director
ANDREW DAVID COX FLATS 102 SYBNEY PLACE, BATTH, BAZ	Witness Full Name Address ら い を	
SIGNED for and on behalf of ASSET ADVANTAGE LIMITED by (Print Full Name) In the presence of:	Director	Director (Signature) ACASMIR RAMSMY,
<u>KNEale</u>	Witness	
kim Neale	Full Name	
Asset Advantage Limited Third Floor, Matrix House Basing View BASINGSTOKE	Address	
Hampshire RG21 4DZ		